095 w/app

FILED
NOV 30 1992

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

CITY OF TAMPA,

Defendant/Petitioner,

vs.

Case No. 80,804

J. D. LONG and HELEN LONG,

Plaintiffs/Respondents.

PETITIONER'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

ON REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL SECOND DISTRICT, STATE OF FLORIDA

PAMELA K. AKIN CITY ATTORNEY

Jack M. Larkin, Esquire
Assistant City Attorney
806 Jackson Street
Tampa, Florida 33602
813-229-6405
Fla. Bar #116721
Attorney for Defendant/Petitioner

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondents, J. D. Long and Helen Long ("Respondents") were the prevailing parties in a negligence action arising from an automobile accident involving the City of Tampa ("Petitioner"). The Petitioner filed a Motion for a New Trial and for a Remittitur based on the award of damages for medical expenses and the instructions given to the jury that subjective complaints of pain resulting from an initial organic injury may be included in the definition of an injury.

The trial court denied the Petitioner's motions and Petitioner filed an appeal with the Second District Court of Appeal to review the denial of the post-trial motions. On October 21, 1992, the District Court affirmed the judgments in favor of the Respondents.

The Petitioner timely filed its Notice to Invoke the Discretionary Jurisdiction of this court on November 20, 1992.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The District Court of Appeal held that the trial court did not err in instructing the jury regarding the inclusion of subjective complaints of pain in the definition of permanent injury. The decision of the district court in this case cannot be reconciled with the holding of the Third District Court of Appeal in Rivero v. Mansfield, 584 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 3d DCA, 1991), jurisdiction accepted, 592 So.2d 1091 (Fla. 1992), Supreme Court Docket No. 78-856.

The <u>Rivero</u> court held that giving the jury instructions that permanent complaints of pain constitute permanent injuries was the equivalent of awarding the plaintiff a directed verdict on the issue of permanency of injury and instructing the jury to ignore the testimony of the defense's medical experts. It is the Petitioner's contention that the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflicts with the decision in <u>Rivero</u>, which is presently before the Court.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Florida Supreme Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review a decision of a District Court of Appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of the Supreme Court or another district court of appeal on this same point of law. Art. V, \$3(b)(3), Fla.Const. (1980); Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

ARGUMENT

The decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in this case expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal in Rivero v. Mansfield, 584 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991), Cert. Accepted, Mansfield v. Rivero, 592 So.2d 1091, Fla. 1992, Supreme Court Docket No. 78-856

The district court of appeal held, despite Petitioner's argument to the contrary, that the trial court did not err in giving the plaintiffs' requested jury instructions regarding permanent complaints of pain being included within the definition of permanent injury in \$627.737(2)(b), Fla.Stat. (1991), which section sets forth the tort threshold requirement.

The decision of the Second District Court of Appeal conflicts with the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in Rivero v.

Mansfield, 584 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991). The Rivero court stated that the giving of jury instructions that indicate that permanent complaints of pain constitute permanent injury was the equivalent of granting a directed verdict to the plaintiffs on the issue of permanency of injury and instructing the jury to disregard the expert medical testimony presented by the defendants. Petitioner respectfully submits that this court should grant discretionary review and resolve this conflict by quashing the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal.

In the decision of the district court reported as <u>City of Tampa v. Long</u>, 17 FLW 2441 (Fla. 2DCA, October 21, 1992), the trial court order denying the Petitioner's Motion for a New Trial on the question of permanent injury instruction by the trial court was affirmed. The district court declined to follow the holding by the Third District Court of Appeal in <u>Rivero v. Mansfield</u>, 584 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991), and adhered to the apparent contrary holding in <u>Johnson v. Phillips</u>, 345 So.2d 1116 (Fla. 2d DCA 1977), Cert. Den. 358 So.2d 131 (Fla. 1978).

The court's refusal to follow the court's decision in <u>Rivero</u> ignores authoritative case law in the State of Florida on the issue of requested jury instructions regarding the tort threshold for "permanent injury". The Second District Court of Appeal appropriates its decision from a previous tort threshold case, <u>Johnson</u>, and applies it in a manner which confuses the definition

of "permanent injury" contained in Florida Statute \$627.737(2)(b).

The district court has affirmed the trial court's inappropriate application of the district court's "threshold" decision in <u>Johnson</u> on the issue of the propriety and sufficiency of jury instructions in the instant case. If the district court's holding is affirmed, the jury instruction will act to obviate and overrule the tort threshold requirement, as set forth in the Florida Statutes.

The Second District Court of Appeal's decision in the instant case directly conflicts with the Third District Court of appeal in Rivero v. Mansfield, 584 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991). The court's opinion states that:

The instruction that permanent injury includes permanent subjective complaints of pain incorrectly informs the jury that under the statute, permanent pain is always permanent injury. In effect, such an instruction directs the jury to disregard the testimony of defense medical experts and is tantamount to the court directing a verdict for plaintiffs on the issue of permanent injury. Id. 1014

The Third District Court of Appeal in <u>Rivero</u> correctly stated that permanent subjective complaints of pain do not constitute permanent injury. That court's decision is in keeping with the statutory meaning of "permanent injury", Florida Statutes \$627.737(2)(b), and allows the jury to proper consideration to expert medical testimony from both parties, regardless of the outcome. This court should affirm the Third District Court of Appeal's rationale, as it pertains to this case, and should accept discretionary review of the matter at hand and quash the contrary

decision of the Second District Court of Appeal.

CONCLUSION

This court has discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision below, and the court should exercise that jurisdiction to consider the merits of Petitioner's argument.