015

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA



DEC 23 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT.

Chief Deputy Clerk

CITY OF TAMPA,

Petitioner,

VS.

Case No. 80,804

J.D. LONG and HELEN LONG,

Respondents.

ON PETITION TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENTS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Stevan T. Northcutt, Esq. of LEVINE, HIRSCH, SEGALL & NORTHCUTT, P.A. Florida Bar No. 262714 Ashley Tower, Suite 1600 Post Office Box 3429 Tampa, Florida 33601-3429 (813) 229-6585 ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENTS

Contents

Authorities	ii
The Case and Facts	1
Summary of Argument	2
Argument	
THE COURT HAS NO JURISDICTION TO REVIEW EITHER OF THE RESPONDENTS' JUDGMENTS	3
Conclusion	5

Summary of Argument

The Court has no jurisdiction to review either of the respondents' judgments. Mr. Long's judgment was affirmed without discussion. Thus, in this regard the decision does not expressly conflict with any other.

In Mrs. Long's case, the jury was instructed that a permanent injury "may include" complaints of pain. This differed significantly from the instruction in Rivero v. Mansfield, infra, in which the court observed that the instruction advised the jury that pain must be considered a permanent injury. Moreover, in Mrs. Long's case medical witnesses did not disagree about whether pain could be considered a permanent injury. Rather, they differed as to whether Mrs. Long was actually in pain. The jury's resolution of that conflict in Mrs. Long's favor did not present a conflict with Rivero.

Argument

THE COURT HAS NO JURISDICTION TO REVIEW EITHER OF THE RESPONDENTS' JUDGMENTS.

Petitioner seeks review of the district court's decisions on the basis of alleged conflict with <u>Rivero v. Mansfield</u>, 584 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991). Decisional conflict sufficient to vest this Court with jurisdiction must be "express and direct". Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution.

In this case, J.D. Long's judgment was affirmed "without discussion." Thus, this Court has no jurisdiction to review the district court decision in regard to Mr. Long's judgment, because an affirmance without discussion cannot "expressly" conflict with any other decision. The Florida Star v. B.J.F., 530 So.2d 286 (Fla. 1988); Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356 (Fla. 1980).

Nor does the affirmance of Mrs. Long's judgment present any conflict with <u>Rivero</u>. In that case, the Third District declined to reverse where the trial judge had refused to instruct the jury that "The words 'permanent injury,' as used in the Florida No-Fault Law, include permanent subjective complaints of pain resulting from an initial organic injury." <u>Rivero</u>, 584 So.2d at 1013.

In an earlier case, <u>Jones v. Smith</u>, 547 So.2d 201 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989), the court had held it error for a judge to refuse to instruct the jury that "the words permanent injury include subjective complaints obtained resulting from an initial organic

injury." Jones, 547 So.2d at 201.

The Rivero court receded from Jones, positing that

[a]n instruction that permanent injury includes permanent subjective complaints of pain incorrectly informs the jury that under the statute permanent pain is always permanent injury. In effect, such an instruction directs the jury to disregard the testimony of defense medical experts and is tantamount to the court directing a verdict for plaintiffs on the issue of permanent injury.

Rivero, 584 So.2d at 1014.

Even assuming the truth of that debatable proposition, what happened in <u>Rivero</u> and <u>Jones</u> did not happen here. Here, the trial judge did not instruct the jury that "permanent injury includes permanent subjective complaints of pain." Rather, he advised them that permanent injury "may" include subjective complaints of pain.

The difference is significant, for in no way did the judge's words suggest that subjective pain must always be permanent injury. In no way was the jury advised that it must disregard the testimony of the defendant's examining physician.

Rather, the jury was asked to do what the defendant's physician suggested: to consider Mrs. Long's case on its merits. In so doing, the jury weighed the testimony of the defendant's physician that Mrs. Long's complaints of pain were inconsistent against the testimony of Mrs. Long's physicians that she suffered from permanent pain that was consistent with their objective observations. In short, the jury accepted the latter view.

That being so, this case presents no conflict with <u>Rivero</u>.

To accept jurisdiction would be a waste of judicial resources.

Conclusion

For the reasons described, the petition for review must be denied.